
  
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
  
2. ELECTION OF OFFICERS

 2.a. Election of Chairperson

 2.b. Election of Vice-Chairperson
  
3. MINUTES

 3.a. Consideration of the minutes of the May 3, 2023 Plan Commission meeting
 Attachment
  
4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

No public hearings have been scheduled for this meeting.
  
5. REPORTS

 5.a. Consideration of Resolution 2023-23 authorizing an extension to the Conditional Use
Permit for the Drive-In Restaurant on property located at 2757 Prairie Avenue

 Attachment

 5.b. Consideration of Resolution 2023-22 approving a three-lot Certified Survey Map for the
property located at 400 Willowbrook Road

 Attachment

 5.c. Consideration of the vacation of a portion of the right-of-way adjacent to 400 Willowbrook
Road

 Attachment

 5.d. Consideration of Resolution 2023-21 approving an Extraterritorial One-lot Certified Survey
Map for the property located at 2335 W Forest Avenue in the Town of Beloit

 Attachment

 5.e. Consideration of a request to annex the property located at 5037 E County Rd X and the
vacant land to the west from the Town of Turtle

 Attachment
  
6. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

Permanent Zoning - 2030 Porter Avenue

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
BELOIT PLAN COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, May 17, 2023

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - May 17, 2023

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1951934/05-03-2023_Plan_Commission_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1951987/Staff_Report__-_CU-2023-05__2757_Prairie_Ave__Scooters_Coffee_Drive-Thru_Extension.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1951660/PC_Report_-_CSM-2023-10__400_Willowbrook.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1951894/VA-2023-02__Vacation_of_ROW__400_Willowbrook_Rd.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1952301/Staff_Report_-_CSM-2023-09__2335_W._Forest_Ave__TOB_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1952429/Staff_Report_-_ANX-2023-01__5037_E_County_Rd_X.pdf


Zoning Map Amendment - 2651 Fuller Drive
  
7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Moore Street Easement for Wisconsin Power and Light
Zoning Map Amendment - 1006 Park Ave 
 

  
8. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs
of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please
contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - May 17, 2023

2



 

1 | P a g e  
 

MINUTES 
PLAN COMMISSION 

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, May 3, 2023 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Chairperson Ramsden called the meeting to order at 7:02 PM. Commissioners Ramsden, 
Flesch, Anderson, Jacobsen, and Councilor Day were present. Commissioners Janke and 
Elliott were absent. 

 
2. MINUTES 

2.a. Consideration of the minutes of April 19, 2023 Plan Commission meeting 
Commissioner Flesch moved to approve the Minutes, seconded by Commissioner 
Jacobsen. Motion prevailed, voice vote (4-0).  

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
3.a. Consideration of Ordinance No 3790 amending the Zoning District Map of the City of 

Beloit for the properties located at 400 Willowbrook Road, 2300 Colley Road, 2000 
Gateway Boulevard, and 2001 Gateway Boulevard 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden opened and closed the public hearing.  
 
Commissioner Flesch moved to approve Ordinance No 3790, seconded by 
Commissioner Anderson. Motion approved, voice vote (4-0). 

 
4. Reports 

4.a. Consideration of Resolution 2023-018 approving a one-lot Extraterritorial Certified 
Survey Map for the property located at 4146 S Afton Road in the Town of Beloit 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Jacobsen moved to approve the resolution, seconded by Commissioner 
Flesch. Motion approved, voice vote (4-0). 
 

4.b. Consideration of Resolution 2023-019 approving a two-lot Extraterritorial Certified 
Survey Map for the property located at 2063 S Afton Road in the Town of Beloit 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 

3



 

2 | P a g e  
 

Commissioner Anderson moved to approve the resolution, seconded by Commissioner 
Flesch. Motion approved, roll call vote (4-0).  

 
4.c. Consideration of Resolution 2023-019 approving a one-lot Extraterritorial Certified 

Survey Map for the property located at 10532 S Walker Road in the Town of Turtle  
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Flesch moved to approve the resolution, seconded by Commissioner 
Jacobsen. Motion approved, roll call vote (4-0).  
 

4.d. Appointment of Plan Commissioner(s) to Steering Committee for Comprehensive 
Plan 
Plan Commission discussed the process for updating the Comprehensive Plan and the 
role the Steering Committee would play. Commissioner Anderson and Chairperson 
Ramsden agreed to serve on the Steering Committee for Comprehensive Plan.  
 

5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS 
Ms. Christensen updated the Plan Commission on the actions taken by City Council related 
to a variety of items previously reviewed by Plan Commission. Ms. Christensen said the next 
Plan Commission meeting is scheduled for May 17, 2023. 
 

6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Julie Christensen outlined the future agenda items. 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
Commissioner Anderson moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Commissioner 
Jacobsen at 7:35 PM.   Motion carried, voice vote (4-0). 
 
 

  
Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

4



 
 

 

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  May 17, 2023 

Agenda Item:  5.a. 

File Number:  CU-2023-05 

 

General Information 

 
Applicant: Vicki Schleisner 
Owner: Cool Investments LLC 
Address/Location:  2757 Prairie Avenue 
Applicant’s Request: An extension for an approved Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow a 
Drive-In Restaurant in a C-3, Community Commercial District, for the property located at 2757 
Prairie Avenue. 
 

Background 

On June 6, 2022, City Council approved the applicant’s Conditional Use Permit (see attached 
City Council Resolution 2022-093. Since that approval, a Watermain Easement has been 
approved and recorded. Building, Site, and Architectural Review plans have been approved. 
Building permits have been issued, and construction is underway. On the approved resolution, 
Ordinance Requirement number three requires the applicant to “complete construction and 
commence use of the drive-in or the CUP shall lapse and be of no further effect.” The applicant 
is hoping to be open July 10, 2023 which is more than 12 months after the approval of 
Resolution. The applicant is requesting an extension until September 30, 2023 to finish 
construction and be operational.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
Section 2-511 of the Zoning Ordinance indicates that a Conditional Use Permit shall lapse if not 
established within one year.  However, this section allows for the applicant to apply to the Plan 
Commission for an extension for the time requirement.  This extension cannot exceed one year. 
 
As indicated above, the applicant has requested an extension to September 30, 2023, although 
they are hoping to be open sooner.   
 
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of an extension of a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow a Drive-In use in a C-3, Community Commercial District, for the 
property located at 2757 Prairie Avenue, subject to the conditions listed below. 
 

5



1. The Conditional Use Permit authorized under City Council Resolution 2022-093 is 
extended to September 30, 2023, and the proposed Drive-in Restaurant at 2757 Prairie 
Avenue must be established by said date.   

2. All Ordinance Requirements and Permit Conditions included in City Council Resolution 
2022-093 remain in full force and effect. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Extension Request, City Council Resolution 2022-093, Site Plan, Renderings, 
and Resolution 2023-023. 
  

6



 

7



8



 

9



 

SITE PLAN 
 

10



 

 

11



12



 

 
RESOLUTION 2023-23 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN EXTENSION TO THE CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR THE  

DRIVE-IN RESTAURANT ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2757 PRAIRIE AVENUE 
 

WHEREAS, the application of Vicki Schleisner on behalf of Cool Investments LLC for an 
extension for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow a Drive-In Restaurant in a C-3, Community 
Commercial District, for the property located at 2757 Prairie Avenue, having been considered 
by the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit, Wisconsin; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit, Rock 
County, Wisconsin does hereby grant an extension for a CUP to allow a Drive-In Restaurant in a 
C-3, Community Commercial District, for the property located at 2757 Prairie Avenue in the City 
of Beloit, for the following described premises: 
 

LOT 4 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP DOCUMENT NUMBER 1718381 IN VOLUME 
29, PAGES 38-40 OF THE CERTIFIED SURVEY MAPS OF ROCK COUNTY, LOCATED 
IN THE CITY OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN (A/K/A 2757 PRAIRIE 
AVENUE).  SAID PARCEL CONTAINS 0.73 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the extension is subject to the following requirements: 

 
1. The Conditional Use Permit authorized under City Council Resolution 2022-093 is 

extended to September 30, 2023, and the proposed Drive-in Restaurant at 2757 Prairie 
Avenue must be established by said date.   

2. All Ordinance Requirements and Permit Conditions included in City Council Resolution 
2022-093 remain in full force and effect. 

 
Adopted this 17th day of May, 2023. 

 
PLAN COMMISSION 

 
  _ 
 Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director 

13



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  May 17, 2023 
Agenda Item:  5.b. 
File Number:  CSM-2023-10 

General Information 

Applicant R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc., on behalf the City of Beloit     
Owner: City of Beloit 
Address/Location:  400 Willowbrook Road    
Applicant’s Request: Approval of a three-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM)  

Staff Analysis 

Background Info: On February 6, 2023, City Council authorized the sale of approximately 4.2 
acres of City-owned property located at 400 Willowbrook Road in the northeast corner of 
Willowbrook Road and C.T.H. P (Stateline Road) to Jason Turner DBA Pinnon Meats. 
Consequently, Jason Turner hired Angus Young and Associates to prepare a site plan for this 
new development.  As the plans were developed, they requested the vacation of a portion of 
Willowbrook Road and other modifications that resulted in the area of land to be sold to 
increase slightly.  This has resulted in an amended sales agreement, which will be considered by 
City Council on May 15, 2023. 

The intent of this CSM is to subdivide the parent parcel located at 400 Willowbrook Road, which 
is approximately 26.95 acres, into one developable lot to be sold to Jason Turner, a second 
parcel owned by the City of Beloit, and one outlot.   A portion of the right-of-way (a triangle of 
10,777 square feet) along Willowbrook Road is the subject of a separate street vacation 
application and would add additional developable area to the proposed Lot 2. The CSM reflects 
that area being vacated, and so any approval of the CSM would be conditioned upon the right-
of-way vacation being approved.  A public hearing on the vacation will be required and is 
tentatively scheduled for the July 3, 2023 City Council meeting. 

CSM Details:  Lot 2 of the proposed CSM consists of 4.549 acres of land. That is the parcel that 
will be conveyed to Jason Turner for development of commercial space including a Pinnon 
Meats.  Lot 1 consisting of 22.307 acres will be retained by the City.  Outlot 1, which is a 0.094-
acre parcel on the south end of the property will also be retained by the City for future right-of-
way (R.O.W.) needs to accommodate planned intersection and roadway improvements related 
to an awarded federal RAISE grant.   

As part of the sales agreement, the City has indicated that staff would initiate a rezoning to C-3 
for the parcel that is created as part of this CSM.  Since all of the land west of Willowbrook and 
south of Colley are shown on the Future Land Use Map included in the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan, City staff initiated the rezoning of the entire 400 Willowbrook Road property as well as the 
property located north of that site from M-2, General Manufacturing, to C-3, Community 

14



Commercial.  Plan Commission recommended approval of that rezoning on May 3, 2023.  The 
proposed lot meets and exceeds the minimum dimensions required by the Zoning Ordinance.  

The overall site has existing utility easements including a 100-foot sanitary sewer easement 
through proposed Lot 1 and a 50-foot ANR pipeline easement through proposed Lots 1 and 2.  
Additionally, a proposed 20-foot watermain easement has been prepared and was approved by 
City Council as part of the sale which will accommodate an existing City watermain through 
proposed Lot 1, Lot 2 and Outlot 1.  

Review Agent Comments:  The proposed CSM was distributed to the Review Agents, and 
they had the following comments:  

 The City Engineer noted that the separate water easement document has been 
prepared and will be recorded.  As such, the watermain easement should not be 
indicated on the CSM.   

 Alliant and Spectrum each indicated that utilities are present in the general area 
including gas, electric and fiber optic. If any utilities are in the area to be vacated, all 
easements and rights incidental to those utilities shall continue.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached three-lot 
CSM for the property located at 400 Willowbrook Road in the City of Beloit, subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. The final CSM shall include any easements requested by area utilities and Engineering. 
2. The Plat of Vacation for a portion of right-of-way located at 400 Willowbrook Road is 

approved by City Council. 
3. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year 

of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

ATTACHMENTS: Location Map, Proposed CSM, Application, Site Assessment Checklist, 
Preliminary Concept Plan and Resolution. 

15



Location and Zoning Map 

16



17



18



19



20



Preliminary Concept Plan 

21



RESOLUTION 2023-22 

APPROVING A THREE-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP FOR THE  
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 400 WILOWBROOK ROAD  

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 
City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 
Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 
subdivision of land within the jurisdiction of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 400 
Willowbrook Road, containing 26.95 acres, is located within the jurisdiction of the City of Beloit; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 
two-lot plus one outlot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

LOT 4 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 1073578, RECORDED IN VOL. 13 ON 
PAGES 268-270, AND PART OF VACATED WILLOWBROOK ROAD BEING PART OF 
THE NW 1/4 AND SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 31, T. 1 N., R. 13 E., OF THE 
4TH P.M., CITY OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN. CONTAINING 26.95 
ACRES. (A/K/A 400 WILLOWBROOK ROAD). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit 
does hereby approve the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 
400 Willowbrook Road, subject to the following conditions: 

1. The final CSM shall include any easements requested by area utilities and Engineering. 
2. The Plat of Vacation for a portion of right-of-way located at 400 Willowbrook Road is 

approved by City Council. 
3. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year 

of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

Adopted this 17th day of May, 2023. 

PLAN COMMISSION 

_ 
Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

ATTEST: 

Julie Christensen 
Community Development Director 

22



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  May 17, 2022 

Agenda Item:  5.c. 

File Number:  VA-2023-02 

General Information 

Applicant: City of Beloit    

Owner:  City of Beloit 

Address/Location: 400 Willowbrook Road 

Applicant’s Request: Vacation of a portion of right-of-way located at 400 Willowbrook Road 

Staff Analysis 

Overview:  The Planning and Building Services Division has received a petition from the City of 
Beloit to vacate a portion of the right-of-way located at 400 Willowbrook Road in the northwest 
corner of Willowbrook Road and C.T.H. P (Stateline Road). On February 6, 2023, City Council 
authorized the sale of a portion of 400 Willowbrook Road to Jason Turner DBA Pinnon Meats. 
As part of design development for 400 Willowbrook, it has been determined that the vacation 
of a portion of the right-of-way (a triangle of 10,777 square feet) would improve site layout by 
adding additional developable area. The right-of-way is extra wide in that portion of 
Willowbrook Road. The vacation has been reviewed by Engineering, and it has been determined 
that the portion of the right-of-way proposed to be vacated is not needed for current or future 
public roadway or infrastructure needs. 

A public hearing will be required and is tentatively scheduled for the regular meeting of the City 
Council on July 3, 2023. 

Public Notice and Comments Received: Under Wis. Stats §66.1003(4)(b) requires that public 
notices be sent by certified mail to adjacent property owners.  No notices were sent since this 
vacation only impacts property owned by the City of Beloit. 

Review Agent Comments:

 Engineering and Water Resources reviewed the proposed vacation.  The City Engineer 
noted that the City does not currently have any utilities in this right-of-way and as such 
formally recommends vacating this right-of-way.  

23



 Alliant and Spectrum each indicated that utilities are present in the general area 
including gas, electric and fiber optic. If any utilities are in the area to be vacated, per 
State law, whenever any public highway is vacated, all easements and rights incidental 
to the easements that belong to any utility shall continue.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the vacation of a portion 
of right-of-way located at 400 Willowbrook Road as described in the attached Plat of Vacation, 
and returning the right-of-way to the adjacent property owner. 

ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Plat of Vacation and Petition. 

24



Location Map 

25



26



27



  

 

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  May 17, 2023 

Agenda Item:  5.d. 

File Number:  CSM-2023-09 

General Information 

Applicant:  R.H. Batterman and Co., Inc. 
Owner:  Albeiro Aguirre 
Address:  2335 West Forest Avenue  
Jurisdiction: Town of Beloit 
Applicant’s Request: One-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map (CSM) 
 
Staff Analysis 

Proposed Land Division: The intent of the proposed extraterritorial CSM is to combine the two 
lots (parcels 6-2-2285 and 6-2-2285.1) into one 0.372-acre lot.   
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  The subject property is zoned R1, Single-Family Residential 
and subject to Town zoning. The property is surrounded by R1 zoning with residential uses. 
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land 
Use Map recommends Single-Family Residential-Urban uses for the subject properties. 
However, land use cannot be considered when reviewing Extraterritorial CSM applications 
according to state law. 
 
Review Agent Comments:  No comments were submitted. 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached one-lot 
Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map (CSM) for 2335 W. Forest Avenue in the Town of Beloit, 
subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year 
of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Certified Survey Map, Application and Resolution. 
 

28



  

LOCATION MAP 

 

29



   
30



  

31



  

RESOLUTION 2023-21 
 

APPROVING A ONE-LOT EXTRATERRITORIAL CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP FOR THE PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 2335 W. FOREST AVENUE IN THE TOWN OF BELOIT 

 
WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 

City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 
Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 
subdivision of land within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for 2335 W. Forest Avenue in the 
Town of Beloit, containing 0.372 acres, more or less, is located within the extraterritorial 
jurisdiction of the City of Beloit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 
one-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 
 

OF LOT 7, BLOCK 1, WESTVIEW, BEING PART OF THE NE ¼ OF THE SE ¼ OF SECTION 33, 
T. 1 N., R. 12 E., OF THE 4TH P.M., TOWN OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY WISCONSIN. (A/K/A 
2335 W. FOREST AVENUE). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit 

does hereby conditionally approve the attached one-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map 
for 2335 W. Forest Avenue in the Town of Beloit, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one 
year of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
Adopted this 17th day of May, 2023. 

 
       Plan Commission 
 
 
   

Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Julie Christensen 
Community Development Director 

32



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  May 17, 2023 

Agenda Item:  5.e. 

File Number:  ANX-2023-01 

General Information 

Applicant: Bradley Trewyn and Danita A. Trewyn 

Owner: Bradley Trewyn and Danita A. Trewyn 

Address/Location:  The property located at 5037 E. County Road X and in the Town of Turtle 

Applicant’s Request: Approval of (Direct) Annexation of two properties located on the 5000 
block of County Road X (parcel numbers 6-19-177A.1 & 6-19-177A.2). The City Council formally 
considered acceptance of the applicant’s petition on May 15, 2023. 

Jurisdiction:  Town of Turtle  

Staff Analysis 

Background Info: The applicant is requesting approval to annex 20.57 acres of land from the 
Town of Turtle to the City of Beloit. Parcel 1 is a three-acre rural residence and Parcel 2 is 15.70 
acres of agricultural land.  If this annexation is approved, City staff will be recommending 
modifications to the City’s Comprehensive Plan to allow for alternative uses of the vacant 
parcel. The subject properties are located within the City’s Sewer Service Area and City sewer is 
located just west of the proposed annexation boundary near the existing corporate limits at 
Milwaukee Road and Hart Road. On May 5, 2023, the Annexation Review Questionnaire was 
submitted to the Wisconsin Department of Administration ’s Office for review. The Town of 
Turtle Clerk has been notified of this annexation request.

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  To the east and south of the subject properties are 
residential uses zoned R-R, Rural Residential and C-2, Highland Conservation District Two. To 
the north is I-43 and agricultural land zoned A-E, Exclusive Agriculture. To the west is the I-43/E. 
Hart Road interchange at WI-81, and I-43 Storage zoned B-1, Local Commercial District all 
located in the Town of Turtle. To the southwest is a quarry owned by Corporate Contractors 
Inc. zoned M-2, General Manufacturing located in the City of Beloit.  

Development:  The applicant does not have plans to develop the vacant land at this time.  
Development would be required to meet the current zoning and landscape code, and likely 
would include a landscape buffer along the adjacent residential properties, depending on the 

33



approved zoning of the subject properties. 

City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan: The Future Land Use Map of the 
Comprehensive Plan recommends Agricultural uses for the subject properties. As mentioned 
above, if the annexation is approved, City staff will be recommending modifications to the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan to allow for alternative uses. If approved, this request supports Strategic 
Goal #3 by creating and sustaining economic development. 

Future Zoning Classification:  In the past when properties were annexed to the City, a 
temporary zoning classification was assigned until an Ordinance approving a Zoning Map 
Amendment was adopted by the City Council.  

Section 66.0217(8) of Wisconsin Statutes allows for the assignment of temporary zoning until 
permanent zoning is approved.  Staff recommends not assigning a temporary zoning at this 
time. A Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Zoning Map Amendment will be initiated if the 
annexation is approved. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of (Direct) Annexation for 
two properties located on the 5000 block of E. County Road X (parcel numbers 6-19-177A.1 & 
6-19-177A.2) in the Town of Turtle. 

ATTACHMENTS:  Location and Zoning Maps, Petition for Annexation, and Plat of Annexation. 

34



City of Beloit Zoning Map 

35



 Town of Turtle Zoning Map 

36



37



38


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2023-1588 - Attachment
	2023-1580 - Attachment
	2023-1581 - Attachment
	2023-1582 - Attachment
	2023-1583 - Attachment
	2023-1584 - Attachment

